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COMMONS REGISTRATION ACT 1965

In the Matter

Runton, North Norfolk D

of Runton Half Year Lends

DECTSTION

4-4

‘Reference Nos. 25/D/34 to 78

inclusive

These disputes relate to the registration at Entry No., 1 in the Land Section and
Intries 1 to 7% inclusive in the Rights Section of Register Unit No. CL.6 in the
Register of Common Land maintained by the Norfolk County Council and are occasioned

by:=

Objection No. 122B made by
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" " 287 ¢ " DT Abbs L n " '* 16 November 1970
" " 290B " " Wilson & Wilson " n " " " 16 November 1970
" " 283 " " 3 W Johnson oo " " 16 Novembér 1970
" " 160B " " 35 T Holliday woonoon " " 24 November 1970

held a hearing for the purpese of inquiring into fhese disputes at Norwich on the
8, 19, 20, 21, 24, 25, 26, 27 and 28 November 1975 and at London on January 12, 13,
4, 15, 16, 28, 29 and 30 1976.

he hearing was attended by:-

iss Sheila Cameron and Mr Charles George, Counsel instructed by Messrs Mills & Reeve
n behalf of the Runton Parish Council and all the applicants for rights.

r Clifford Joseph and Mr Ben Sawbridge, Counsel instructed by Messrs Russell Steward
tevens and Hipwell on behalf of the Caravan Club of Great Britain {Mr Chidson's
bjection No, 215B}.

r N A C Butcher of Hessrs Emmett % Tacon appeared on benalf of the Chjectors:-

DT & B R Abbs : Cbjection 207B
S T Holliday a 1578
F A Bloomfield n 2998
G R Culley i 258B
E Porritt " 2628
D M Leake " 2008
R Hatthews " 1618
M E Harrison t 1463
T Bullimore " 1338
Y R Babbage " 1358
T 2 ' Tacon " 1593

r iitcham, ir Jonas and iir Crisp appeared in serson.

unton as it is teoday.

he Parish of Runton lies on the coast of Norfolk between Cromer and Sherringham;

t comprises two villages Cast Runton and “est Runton. A mulitiolicity of maps were
roduced at the hearing and in my view it is not necessary to annex any map to this
ecision and in the interests of economy it is undesiratble so to do,

here lie in Runton 527 acres of land wkich the Parish Council and the other
pplicants for rights allege are "half year lands'" subject to grazing rights from

1 October (o0ld liichaelmas Day) to 6 arril (old Lady Day) in every year. There also
ie within the said parish tracts of land which are undisputed commons available

or grazing throughout the year.

he guestion which I have to determine is whether, as the Farish Council and the
ther apzlicants for rights conternd, there are any subsisting gra-ing rights over

he half year lands or whether, as the objectors contend, there are no such rights
till subsisting. Iir R T lould a chartered surveyor produced a map illustrating the
ses to which the half year lands are rut at the vresent time which showeda that:-

202 acres 38% are vasture
200 " 285 " arable
61 " 12% " woodland and scrub
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It is beyond dispute that sa
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rights claimed in receat times and between 1929 an
In the course of the hearin
Manor Farm and Cottage Farm.

on the half year lands.
namely Laburnum Farm,
owners of Laburnum Farm and

expect the
half year rights.

and let to a tenant farmer,

Except for one pony there was no evide
for that purpose throughout the year, one such commo
water laid on for that purpose is now overgro
Mr Hughes who became chairman of the Parish
e sheep as the Council were taking grass off

to be grazed and had
gorse and bracken and
stated that he wished there were som
other commons merely to get rid of it.

At an early stage in th
in the atsence of any commonable anl
The fact of the matter is that there are numerous caravan
licensed by the Tistrict Council for use as such during
Sevtember and if the half year rights are ughel
twe District “ouncil's requirements as rezards aygiene
srovide a valungle source of

unrealistic.
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Cottage Farm is owned by the successors to Sir Ivison Hacadam

e hearing I indicated that in t

who did not give evidence although Lady Macadan the
widow of Sir Ivison gave evidence in support of the rights.

nce of any grazing on the commons available

It is

Council in 1967

the perio
they Wil

d
1

e

ve as regards a purported cullett flock to which I will
s decision there has been no exercise of the grazing
d 1963 no sheep have been grajed
g I was told of three farms
Contrary to what one would
Manor Farm object to the subsistence of

n Incleborough Hill which used
wn and a mass of

he apsence of any grazing and
mals capatle of being grazed these disputes were
Sites on

aisg tte fact that since
selieved to oe subject

to half year rights is less valuzble than other land.

The fact of the matter is that those who seelt to uphold h1alf year rignts do 50

not witn a view to exercising to the right to graze, hut in order that the riznts o

nave the effect of restrictive covenants against the use of the half vear lands for

nurposes inconsistent with grazing.

The Half Year Rights Claimed

These were stated by liiss Cameron to fall into three categories:

1 A right now vested in th Parish Council as trustee for the inhapitants

2 “ne right of a flock of sheep known as the abbey “lock to grage the half vear
lands, and ‘

3 A right of shack for owners of half year lands to graze the half year lands of

other owners.

iiss

rights registrations of any of ¢
, The Norfolk

Mr Oliver (No. 10)

Cameron conceded at an early stage that she could
ne 74 applicants for r
Archaeologzical Trust (llo. 52),
74} I also indicated that if

(ilo. 49) and Sir Ivison Macadam (No.

-3 -

iss Cameron

not invite me to confirn the :
ights other than those of
The Farish Council
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.stablished that the Parish Council was a trustee for the inhabitants I would
confirm that registration in a suitably modified form.

sarly History

e Beeston Priory was founded about the time of the reign of King John. ~ The
riginal endowment was of 40 acres of land in Beeston and Runton together with
ertain demesne lands, rents, services, meadows, wreck of sea and fisheries. It
vas suppressed by Henry VIII in June 1539 and in 1540 the Crown granted a lease of
the site of the priory and its possessions teo John Travers and in 1545 the Crown
rranted the site its lordships,lands and tenements to Sir Edmund Wyndham and Giles
Seafowle jointly: see The Victoria County Histery 1883 and Yalter Rye, The History
»f -the Hundred of North Erpingham at p.46. The Manors of Beeston and Runton were
both comprised in the possessions of the Abbey in 1535.

In 1804 the Abbey Farm was in the ownership of Cremer ‘oodrow and in that year he
sold it to Samuel Hoare. Copies of the particulars of the Estate and the agreement
for sale were produced at the hearing. The particulars stated that there were "about
200 acres of Heath Ground belonging to this estate on which certain persons have a
right to put their sheep and cattle from 1l October to 6 April in every year, then

in the occupation of Mr Haxell, and the ibbey Farm was conveyed together with" rights
of sheepwalk, nereditaments and appurtenances thereunto resvectively belonging. The
convevance also referred to a foldcourse as being comprised in the sale. Iy
impression is that even at that time any distinction between a foldcourse and a sheep-
valk had ceased to have any practical significance in Runton and the words were used
:s referable to the same right. There was produced at the hearing a map of 1804 and
2 leather bound book wiich identified the land subject to the ibbey sheeowalk,

ced at the hearing a copy of an indenture made on 5 January 1341
12n attached) made between I J Johnson and Sir Thomas fowell

and in Junton shown on the plan was acquired by 3ir Thomas Suxton,
w25 coloured blue on the plan being subject to half year rights.

Ttere was alse
{together with the p
Suxton whereby t

such of that lan

Jr Jesernn suocmitited that the 1241 plan dizclosed that land subject to half year rights
szd been released “rom these rizhnts subseauent to 1804 but I am not convinced that this
was so. Thne riznt over the Xeath Ground was vested in persons other than the owner

of the .obey »izhts ard their release could not be relevant to the entitlement of the

owner oY the ibbey risnts to release those rights.

in 1392 r % ¥rs Reynolds became the tenants of the Abbey Farm which was conveyed to
urs Revrolds by 3ir 3amuel Hoare by a conveyance dated 31 August 1920 together.

The Tulcher iction 1899

-ear 1909 an action was commenced in the Holt County Court by Zrpinghanm 2DC
™ n i ol

In the

against one Tulcher wio had acguired some half year land and was engaged in building
on that laond. The RDC sued by virtue of the nower conferred upon it by virtue of the
Section 26 of the Local Jovernment act 1394, I assume at the recuest of the Runton

arish Council, an assumvtion I make because the RDC ultimately recuired the FParish
Council %o meet the costs not recovered from Fulcher.,

4

The relief claimed in the varticulars of claim was to the following effect:

. k-
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1 A declaration that the inhabitants of Runton or alternatively the owners and
occupiers of houses in Runton have rights of pasturing all their sheep levant et
couchant in Runton on certain lands in Runton comprising about 400 acres and
known as half year lands between sunrise and sunset from the 11 October to
5 April in any year such sheep being placed together in one flock, under the
charge of a common shepherd, which is and has long been known as the cullett
flock. :

2 An injunction restraining the Defendant from inclosing or destroying or
building upon the pasture or herbage on his part of the half year lands.

3 A mandatory injunction and costs.

The course this litigation took was that oral evidence, of which a press report was
produced at the hearing, was heard at Holt and the case was then adjourned to London
for legal argument and a transcrivt of the proceedings in London was also produced at
the nearing. I was told that some owners of half year land were either present or
revresented at the hearing but Judge Willis refused to hear them on the ground that
they were not parties to the action. Ir Fulcher was a newcomer to Runton, his only
concern was to proceed with his building operation and at an early stage in the
proceedings irn London, he arrived at a compromise with the RDC whereby he was enabled
to continue his building operations on payment of 210 and costs. Thereafter his only
concern was to terminate the proceedings as expeditiously and cheaply as vpossible,

Mr Cozens iardy who avpearcd for the RDC pressed Judge /illis to make a declaration
stressing that it must noi be by consent. Judge ¥illis was reluctant to make any
declaration and nointed out that it would not be binding on anyone otzer than fulcher,
but he was uitimately trevailed uvpon o mzke the followirg declaration:-

(R 12 SRS It oy
JO4T Cage 1LTnaCly T

of =masturing 2ll %
and commennible anima
1onds in Zunmton hetween sunrise and sunset on every day
£

L

~ -~ - 9 L o MRS T 3 oo "
rom Jctoter 11th o Sth inril in every ryear

(PP - f- ]

b

te the rizht
r cheern cows horses ponies Ldonkeys
-

I
1

The 310 which Fulcher 12d azrsed to uay was pald into
inhabitants of Zunton,

Hy

ourt to the credit o he

ration made ov Judge Villis has sedevilled Punion for the last seventy-five
- - £ b :

vears, 4t i1s not surrrising that, in , inhabitants of
Zunton have helieved and still telieve et out in the
Declarziion. One witness at the hearing ol z on Judge Willis".
‘liss Cameron in answver to a cuestion from me did not supgest that I was tound by the
decision of Judze 7Villis and invited me to arrive at a Jdecisbn on the clizin of the

"

innabitants on the eviience adduced znd the submissionsmade at the Learing.

In my view, for reasons which will argear liercafter, the Piicher action is in voint
of time fne high water marl of tle claim on behall of tle inhaditantsy they ceuld not
in my view have acguired since 1350, thoush they may -os3ibly have lost, any rights
they then had. For this reason T shall have to consider ihe “ulcher action in reater
detail lzter in this decision.
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The consequences of the Fulcher action

The Fulcher action led to the Erpingham RDC making an approach to the Charity .
Commissioners on 13 December with a view to their

(1) appointing Trustees of moneys received and to be received by way of compensation
or otherwise in respect of half year lands, and

[

(2) drawing up a scheme for the application of such moneys.

The ‘history of the part played by the Charity Commission is fully set out in a very
full report made by Mr G ¥ Wallace in July 1915, a copy of which was.produced at the
hearing. The salient facts that emerge from this regort are as follows:-

(1) "Owners of half year lands appear to have from time to time sold portions for
building purposes without any claim to any mart of the proceeds on behalf of
the Commoners until 1898." ‘hen a claim was made against a Gas Company, no
statutory committee was appointed to receive the money and £5-1-6 was paid into
Barclays Bank where it remained.

(2) This was followed by the Fulcher case in 1899

(3) On the faith of the Ffulcher judgment £25 compensation was obtained from a
i'rs Revnolds (not rs Revnolds of Abbey Farm) who had built on half year land;
this was paid to the Cfficial Trustee of Charitable Funds.

nuary 1902 a scieme was published, to appoiht Trustees and fo authorise the
ees to apply the income of tae Charity to payment of a herdsman and sudject
to to any public purvose for the benefit of the inhabitants.

(5) T:e suvlication of the Scheme provoked tlre opposition of the three nain owners
of half year lands who owned between them between 650 and 700 acres.

"Ther did not admit any right in the inhabitants sut
alleged that the rizhts claimed were exercisable

‘only by the owners of the half year lands inter se or
their occuviers. They therefore did not admit that
ther were a charity or capable of being deait with
under the Charitable Trusts Acts. They further
objected that the RDC had no powers to sell or release
rights of common, that the money held by the Official
Trustee seemed to be the proceeds of such a sale or
release and that they had given notice to the
solicitors of the IDC that they would hold the Council
liable for the infringement of their rights"

{(6) 1In liarch 1603 the ! % GIR Railway Co paid £25 as compensation for the release
of rigats to the trustees nominated by the RDC

(7) Cn 22 October 1910 the owners of almost the entirety of the half year lands

made an application to the Board of Agriculture and Fisheries for a Provisional
Order for their inclosure under the Inclosure Acts 1845 to 1890. Conseguent.

- 6=
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upon the application Mr Dill held an enquiry and made a report to the Ministry
dated’ 1 November 1912, A copy of this report was produced at the hearing.
Mr Dill advised that it was not expedient to proceed further in the matter

(8) A fresh scheme was published in 1911 which met with the same objections by the
owners of the half year lands as those previously expressed by them

(9) At a meeting convened at the request of Mr Wallace attended by the Rev Fitch,
Rector of Beeston Regis, vice chairman of the Council, James Abbs, senior,
chairman of Runton PC, Guy Davey agent for Sir Samuel Hoares executors and
J T Willis, clerk of the RDC, Mr Davey maintained that any evidence given in
the Fulcher action that the cullett flock had any right independently of his was
erroneous. Lf Sir Samuel Hoare released his right, the right of the cullett
flock went with it. The others agreed with Mr Davey

(10) Ultimately on 17 December 1915 the Board of Charity Commissioners made an order
aporoving a scheme whereby the £10 paid into Court in the Fulcher action, the
sun of 25-1-6 and a further sum of £67-13-3 received by way of compensation were
to be paid to the Erpingham RDC and applied for the relief of the rates of the
Parish of Runton

Faragraph 3 of the scheme is in the following terms:-

"3 Hothing in this scheme shall prejudicially affect any claim with respect
to the ownership of the half year lands or be deemed to involve any
adnission by the ouwners of the said lands that the above mentioned rights
exist,"

n nis report and ..r 2ill in his repori and the revresentative of the
ng referred to above all expressed grave doudbts as to the

wr Jallace
=l ’1 T; A
decision in the Fulcher case.

Zropianghas
sourndness of t

floci: grazed up to the commencenent of the vpresent century but ceased to
seriod of avout & to 3 years prior to 1913 when it was reconstituted under
i Jimmy Syxie, A1l the sheep fell ill and died wiihin apnroximately one

since the commencement of the 1914/18 war until 1963 there has been no
g“a21n° or.iurportea grazing o a cullett flock. In 1963 the late Sir Ivison Macadan
purvorted to reconstitute the cullett flock.

Lady .zcadam, the widow of 3ir Ivison, gave evidence on the subject of tae 1963 flock.
she said that at that time there was serious disagreement; there was an atterpt to
build on n2lf year lands of the Parish. ''Je did not wish to abandon the rights and 1t
was decided in consultation with others why not exercise the rizht. 8 sheep were
available for sale by a rerson leaving the area. !y husband paid a nominal sum and
the sheep were divided among six different owners, my husband had 2, Abbs had 2,
Alexander 3easy (an emnloyee of 3ir Ivison) had one. irs O'Hanlon nad one, =xcent
for ibbs who »naid the otliers were given their sheep. Iy husband feit it would be
difficult for the owners to say. The original sheep had ear tags numbered to identify
their owrers. The sheep were mostly on two nhalf year fields belonging to my husband.
have seen them on the caravan site and on the commons when my husband went out with
3easy; he was the shepherd but that was not his sole duty. The sheep were nostly on
my husband's land; on one occasion I saw them round Incleborough Hill and on 03 166-9

-7 -



.51-

inclusive', In answer to a question put by me Lady Macadam accepted that insofar

as the sheep left Macadam land, they were doing no more than "showing the flag". Since
1963 the flock has increased. As between owners in return for maintenance, the lambs
and fleeces belonged to Sir Ivison. James Abbs' sheep had triplets (of which he made no
mention in his evidence). There have been seven new owners who have bought sheep

and who all paid for their sheep. Ther has been no change in the arrangements.

.The flock now numbers 78. We had a small farm and also owned Cottage Farm, there

are no sheep other than the cullett flock at the moment." James Abbs in evidence

said in 1936 Sir Ivison started a small flock. He bought two sheep and left them

with Sir Ivison's shepherd. They would eventually graze on both commons. He thought
they would eventually become a c¢ullett flock. He never saw them grazing. Mrs N M Leake
said that she owned half a sheep, and her busband owned the other half in the
reconstituted flock. They did this to continue theright and to keep land for the
production of food. It was for this reason she registered rights. Miss E E

Alexander said her sister acquired an original sheep and she acquired one two or

three years later because she was so interested in it. She said she still owns a

sheep. Miss E M Alexander confirmed her sister's evidence save that she only had

half a sheep and another sister owned the other half. She hoped it was still alive

but she didn't know. A Mr Mould won a sheep in a raffle.

On this evidence, I have come to the conclusion that this reconstituted, so called,
cullett flock was and is a mere sham. No owner of a sheep other than Sir Ivison

and his successors has received any benefit from the flock and no owner knows whether
his sheen is alive or dead. In any event if the cullett rights were capable of
abandonment they had in my view been abandoned by 1963 and if they were not capable
of being abandoned the reconstituted flock did not serve any useful purpose.

The Abbev Flock

It has never been disvuted that the Abbey Tlock had half year rights over the half
year lands. In 1899 Mr % irs Reynolds became the tenants of Abbey Farm and by a
conveyance dated 31 lugust 1920 they acauired the freehold from Sir Samuel Hoare
"and also all that sheeowalk or foldcourse (vart of or belonging to the said
messuage or farm ecalled "Beeston Foldeourse’., In 1955 !rs Reynolds made a
statutery declaration, parasgranhs % and 5 were in the followinzg terms:-

4  M"3ince I have been the owner of the property I have exercised the Zghts of the
sheevmaster and during that time and also whilst my husband and T were tenants
thereof on behalf of 3ir 3amuel Hoare I or he collected from time to time amual
fees from the owners and occupiers of land in Runton and 3eeston Regis subject
to the before mentioned rights calculated at 2/~ vper acre to exempt certain
portions of land as vere down to roots during the period when such rights would
otherwise be exercisable.

5  The Priory Farm flocks were driven over every year.up to 1929, This was discontinuec
after 1629 as the sheer could not te taken over the roads owing to the increase
in the volume of traffic making it dangerous to do so and the flocks were then sold.’

Mrs Reynelds died on the 11th April 1957 having by her will dated 17 September 1962
made the following bequest:

[ sE RN
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3 I give to the Rural District Council of Erpingham in Norfolk (should I
not already have given the same in my lifetime) that sheepwalk or
foldcourse (part of or belonging to Priory Farm Beeston Regis) called
Beeston Foldcourse and all my interest therein (except such part as may
affect any land which may be vested in me beneficially at the date of my
death) in fee simple.

After the death of Mrs Reynolds doubts were expressed as to whether or not the
sheepwalk could be severed from the Priory Farm. Vvhether for this or other reasons
the Erpingham RDC did not accept the bequest. The Abbey Rights have not been
registered under the Act of 1965 and are no longer exercisable.

I am bound to follow the decision of Goff J as he then was, in Central Electricity
Generating Board v Clwyvd County Council, so far only reported in the Estates Gazette
Vol. 235 to 299, and Ishall therefore refuse to confirm the Entry in the Land Section
unless I am able to confirm one or more of the Intries in the Rights Section.

However in case the decision of Goff J is overruled, or distinguished on an appeal
in the instant case, it is right that I should say that Thave come to the conclusion
that the Abbey Rights had been abandoned nrior to the 13 February 1967 the date of
the registration of the half year lands as common land,.

liiss Cameron contended that the Abbey Rights had not been abandoned.
inerals v

She relied upon the nassage in the judgment of Buckley IJ in Tehidy
lMewman 1971 2 QB 528 at p.553:-

abandonment of an easement or profit z prendre czn only, we think, be
treated as naving taken nlace wihere tile person entitled to it -
demonstrated a fiwed intention never at any time thereafte
the right himself or to attempt to transmit it to anyone 2

| ]

se.

Miss Cameron relied on four natters

intention to abandon. Three of thes
th

for not grazing and the fourth is
to the Zroningham RDC,

as establishing that iirs Reyneids never had any
elate to the demand for or receint of noney
- T4
- 9

er
e above-meniiloned 3i of the rishts by her will

It was established practice that the sheepmaster was entitled to a nayment of 2/-

ver acre for land under roots, these nayments bveing in the nature of compensation for
the ~bbey flock being deprived of grazing wiich would lave been avzilsble on stubble.
An account book of lirs Reynolds was nroduced at the hearing showing the receint by
Hrs Reynolds of '"turnip money" on a diminishing scale down to 195%. There were also
vroduced two letters written by her on 27 lovember 1844 and 5 Decemter 1649 o

Mir Byworth and lMr J A Abbs resjpectively. In the first of these letters lirs :levnolds
said:

"I do not understand your attitude tewards my man when I sent as usual
about the half year sheevwalk grazing rights. You told him you would wait
till the sheen come. I wonder if you are aware that I can put sheep on
vour land each day from mid-October to early aAnril...I am surzrised that

-9 -



ou do not realise that the fact that I am retaining the Monastic

ights is an asset to the Runtons otherwise the place would be built upe.
I have taken my solicitor's advice about it and although at the
moment it may be difficult he suggests that I might find it possible

to run sheep over the land."

The letter to Mr Abbs was written in similar circumstances. In 1956 Mrs Reynolds
released certain land in the ownership of Mr & Mrs Pickering in consideration of a
payment to her, ' o '

¥Mr J A Abbs in evidence said he remembered the letter addressed to him and that he
went on paying for a few years. Mr Holliday the son-in-law of Mr Byworth said he knew
his father-in-law paid Mrs Reynolds, on one occasion and thereafter he refused to pay.
His father-in-law always had roots.

It is also relevant to menticn that evidence was given that the gates on half year
land were taken down at the commencement of the open season but that they had not
been taken down since 1930,

In.one sense of the word '"assert" lrs Reynolds' demands for and acceptance of compensati

and her statements in the above-mentioned letters could be regarded as assertions of
her rights. 1In my view this is not the sense in which Buckley LJ used that word in
the passage of his judgment quoted above. At the top of p.546 he said "grazing
another man's land is at least as obtrusive an assertion of a right to do something
on the land of another as for instance the use of a way'". In my view if a risht is
not to be abandoned there must be an intention to assert the right 37 exercising

that right. In the instant case I am satisfied that lirs Reynolds had no such
intention and’I have come to the conclusion because (1) Mrs Reynclds did not graze

2 single sheep from 1929 down to the date of her death in 1967, 38 rears avproximately,
(2) ¥rs Reynolds' statutory declaration gave as ner reason for the ¢iscontiruance of
grazins the hazards of traffic, which must have increased rather than dininished over
the years, (3) The bequest in her will to the Zrningham RDC and the nossibility
envisaged that she might give her rights to the RDC prior to her death. In ny view
«r3 Rernolds cannot have contemplated the grazing of an Abbey flock by the 35C, The
inference which I draw is thai the purnose of the gift to the RWC was that stated in
her letter to Hr Byworth namely that the Monastic Rights should be held as an asset
for the Runtons to wrevent building.

‘iss Cameron in reliance upon {yid v Silver 1962 3 LD 841 contended that motive for
asserting the right isirrelevant. “here the right exists this is without doubt true.
In the instant case I am concerned with a right to graze, not a right to receive
compensation for not grazing non-existent sheep, even if there was such a right,
which in my opinion there was not. FNrs Reynolds having formed the intention not to
graze the Abbey flock and net having grazed the Abbey flock for 38 years diéd in ny.
view abandon her rights and her motive in seeking to maintain the continued existence
of the rights in order to resirict building is consistent wiih her intention to
abandon the graging of the Abbey flock. The right alleged is a right to graze not a
restrictive covenant against ouilding.,

#dr Josepn made various submissions on the Abbey flock, the short effect of which was
to endeavour to impsle Miss Cameron on a fork. On the one hand he submittecd that

Hiss Reynold's sheepwalk was not a right of cormon, and on the other nand he submitted
that if it was a right of common, the effect of the releases executed by her was to
release the whole right (Johnson v Barnes (1873) LR 8 CP S527). I do not provose to

- 10 -
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give any decision on these submissions, which will be open to Mr Joseph on an appeal,
for the reason that the Abbey rights may have been subsisting on 1 January 1926 and

the half year lands may therefore be subject to the restrictions imposed by Section 194
of the LPA 1925,

Having come to the conclusion that I cannot confirm the Entry in the Land Section of
the Register on the footing that the Abbey rights were subsisting at the date of
registration it is, in my view, undesirable that I should express any views which
bear on the question as to whether or not Section 194 has any application to the half
year lands. :

The ¢laims on behalf of the inhabitants

MHiss Cameron's submissions on this vpart of the case are that the long user imposes
on me a duty to presume a lawful origin and she goes on to say that the lawful origin
I must oresume is either (a) a grant by .the Crown to the inhabitants, thereby
incorzorating them or (b} a grant to unidentified trustees on behalf of inhabitants.

In my view I cannot make any such presumption. In Gardner v Hodgsons Xingston .
Srewery Company 1203 AC 229 Lord Lindley, after stating that the common law doctrine
is that 21l prescription nresupposes a grant and that in order that a title by
vrescripiion may be so establisnhed the enjoyment must be inconsistent with any other
reasonable inference, that it has been as of right in the sense above explaired, goes
on to say:

s I think, is the oproper inference fto be drawn from the authorities
ussed in the Court telow. If the enjorment is equdlly consistent

two reasonzdle inferences enjoyment as of right is not esiablished", and
1zt This conclusion alzo nrevents the anplication to the wresent cose of
thie doctrine of lest grant. Jor that docirine only azriles wiere the

855

nioyient cannot te otherwise reascnably asccounted for'.

-~
-

iy

ech Lord Lindlev was cited by larman LJ in Beckett
27 Ta.5hS at 1L 473 and 474 wrere ne said

PN -
@ 1ron oTile she
3 ~
- =

ita ¥ Lyens K

b

If it e clesr that the ''isase has long Teen nractised under a claim
] o -
o7 »iznt then the Touri will be astute to find a legal origin for it,

tut wnere another explznation is equally »possible the rrinciple does not
sravnil,  fere I othink toleration is a sufficient explanation,"

I now turn to the evidence in order to consider whether the usages uroved are

consistent only with the rizhts claimed by the inhabitants, and I start with the
rnress rernort of the evidence in the rulcher case.

snenherd of the cullett flock gave evidence that he drove tle flock
rear land excect that under turnips. He took sheen from anybody who
poor foll: ard all,

vames ~hus the
over alli zalf

nad tiiem, farmers,

John Lavrence then aged 37 hrad nut sheep on half year lands, Jnyone in the Runtons
could nut sheep on. e only had a cottage and no land of his own. He put his sheep

on whole year lands in the summer. The cullett flock was poor folle's right.

~obert Love aged 74 had been emploved by Robert Ives to keep cows and colts on half
year lan¢s. A lad named Green Xept poor people's cows poniés and donkeys. dAnyone
who occupied a house in the Farish of Runton could put in cows, poaiés, horses and
50 On. :
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Mr Cutler gave evidence that his grandfather and father kept sheep on the land.

A release given to Mr Fulcher by Sir Samuel Hoare was produced. Mr Reynolds of the
Abbey Farm said he thought the cullett flock should follow his but he could not say.

If one refers to the particulars of claim it will be seen that the only rights
claimed were in respect of the cullett flock, notwithstanding this the declaration
made by Judge Wills relates to a right to graze other animals. Then again notwith-
standing that claim was made on behalf of the inhabitants or alternatively the
owners and occupiers of houses in Runton; six alternative grounds on which the right
is alleged to have been based were put forward of which three if accepted would
establish rights in the owners and occupiers of héuses and lands in Runton as distinct
from the inhabitants. Paragraphs 9 and 10 of the Particulars are consistent with
Miss Cameron's submissions at this hearing save only that she suggests a Royal Grant
by Henry VIII after he suporessed the Priory rather than a grant by WillianI as
pleaded in the Particulars.

The meagre evidence was to the effect that the rights claimed were either 'poor
folk's rights” or the rights of occupiers of houses in Runton. It should also be
mentioned that r Abbs and Mr Lawrence spoke of resistance to the exercise of cullett
rights ard counter measures.

It is relevant to point out that the RDC on behalf of the inhabitants were

represented by counsel, who settled a draft rewort on the half year lands, I assume

for submission to the Zrvingham RDC with a view to the institution of the Fulcher
action. This report was nroduced at the hearing as also were cases to counsel and
their ovinions which were no doubt included in vir Cozens ardy's instructions. I do
not find the opinions nelzsful. The instructions (at p. 42 of the Charity Commissioners
file) refer to

(1) Cwrers and promrietors of lands in the Parish of Runton having a rignt to turn
their great ard commonable cattle and also a number of sneen called a cullett
flecck in the common fields and hal? vear lands

(2) ZInstructions to Jeddrell refer to the sheey in the cullett flock belonging to
the poor

C

(3) ZInstructions to ir Partridge (1793) refer to the cullett flock belonging to
various occupiers of land in prosortion to their respective occupation, but
stazte that cottzgers ard those wno have any land claim a2 right of feeding sheep,
wiich is now contested '

(4) Irstructions to “r Forster (177%¢) refer to the cullett flock as comprising
steep or great cattle kert by the farmers, occuplers ard the poor.

There is no suggestion in any of these earliy docuﬂents of the enjoyment of any rights
of the inhabitants as such but the instructions to Hr Partridge do state that
cottagers whose cottages once had land annexed to them continue to graze after these
lands were ad<ed to the larger occupations, either from indulgence, suffrance or
neglect of the land owners.

The draft report settled by ir Cozens Hardy does state:-

-12 -
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"The only connection between the two flocks is that the
Beeston Abbey flock had the prior right to feed the lands
and the cullett was to follow".

I hope I have now dealt with all the material which was available at the time of
the Fulcher case, thought not all of it was available to Judge Willis. I pause at
this point in history because it is clear that any rights the subject of a grant
for the benefit of the inhabitants must have been of those existing at that time.
As regards subsequent grazing, I have already dealt with the cullett flock and

the evidence given at the hearing as to other commonable animals was to the effect
that such grazing continued down to the 1939/45 war on an ever diminishing scale,
and that thereafter it has been virtually non-existent. No useful purpose will

bé served by my referring to this evidence in detail.

At the hearing when I was told of the payment of '"turnip money" to Mrs Reynolds
and that the inhabitants never claimed any part of that money and that neither
the cullett flock nor indeed other animals ever claimed to graze on the turnip
land, I began to wonder whether the cullett rights might not have been carved
out of or dependent upon the Abbey rights.

Support for the view that the cullett flock was dependent on_thé Abbey flock came
when Mr A H Love aged 75 said in cross-examination that 'the Abbey flock had to go
first. You couldn't put on nothing till they had been." Mr Love did not know what
would happen if the Abbey flock did not go on. Then again Sir Samuel Hoare
released some land from grazing rights in 1900 and !rs Reynolds executed releases
in favour of HMrs Simmonds and ilr Barrison in 1925 and in favour of iir Pickering

in 1956. It was not until after the registration of half year lands as common

land that any claim was made on behalf{ of the inhabitants to graze on the lands

the subject of these releases. It was also accepted that there wasm right to
graze on half year lands scwn with corm.

T turn now to an article by Mr ¥ J Allison in the Agricultural History Xeview,
published by the British igricultural History Society, Yol. 5 1957 on the "heep-
Corn Zusbandry in Norfolk in the 15th and 17th Centuries”. I zuote the following
passagzes from this article:

At p. 15: 'Norfolk sheep farming was predominantly the concern of tae manorial lord
or his lessee. The demesne flocks did nct however feed solely on:the cdemesne

lands but ranged over the owpen-rield holdinzs of the lord's tenants, Horfolk
villages rarely contained a single manor and the open-iields and heat: land of a
village were divided between the flocks of two or more manorial lords. The area
allotted to each was called a foldcourse...

The inclusion of both open-field and heathland within a foldcourse was essential
if the flock was to have vasturage available for the whole year. The sheep fed over
all the unsown arable land (which they shared with the tenants great cattle) dut
although this was extensive in the autumn and winter aiter the harvest it was
severely limited during the summer months'. "At “he foot of p. 16: "The writer of a
17th century treatise on foldcourses insisted that all land within a foldcourse
should be subject to the feeding of the lord's sheep; if they did not Teed on a
tenant's close then the lord had released it or taken some composition for it or
the close had never been anciently part of the foldcourse'.
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I pause here to point out that the picture painted by Mr Allison is applicable
to Runton. There were commons available for grazing throughout the year and
grazing available on the arable land after the harvest. The grazing rights on
the arable land are those of thelord and he could release or compound for these
rlghts. :

At p. 18 Mr Allison says: "Slnce foldecourses were flxed in area an equally strict
customary limit was placed on the size of the flocks which could be maintained".

This is a possible origin of the limit of 400 on the Abbey flock. At p. 20 Mr Allison

says: "The owners of the foldcoiirses normally gave a tenant compensation for
obliging him to leave his strips fallow during any one year, compensation taking
the form of demesne land offered in exchange, a temporary reduction in rent, or

an increased number of animals which the tenants might put into the lord's flocks'.

In the previous- paragraph Mr Allison mentioned one other important aspect of
cooperation between flock owner and tenants; many tenants possessed a "cullett
right" which enabled them to keep a few sheep in the lord's flock and he continued
at p. 21 to deal with "cullett rights" inter alia in the following terms: ‘

"The numbers of sheep put into a flock of individual tenants
wvere determined by tne amount of land which they owmed in the
open fields"

and

"Cullett sheeon were tended throughout the year by the lord's
stevherd but tenants took both the increase of lambs and the
wool clip., If ary cullett sheen died or were sold others
could be nut into the flock to remlace them, but the number
was never toc exceed that allotted to each tenant'.

Tater in his article Mr Allison deals with the abuse of the foldeourse s‘ stenm

by Yandlords wie 4id much as they pleased and denrived tenants of their cust

rights. At n. 24 ke says cullett rizhts were often limited to freenolders 14 a
o] -

village, but the netitioners wanted the privilege teo ve urniversalily extended to

other tencneies too and they demanded that cullett sheep should bve allowed in respect

of tenant's land lying in the foldcourses without any money payment.
Cther relevant nassages in Hr Allison's article are to be found at 2. 26, "Tenants
were first oblized to lay oven such obstructive closes, but as plecemeal enclosure
became nore wideswread nany landlords were nersuaded to tolerate closes wrovided
gans were made for sheep toentfer when the land was unsown eszecially at 'shack

time'" and at n. 27 2e deals with turnips as a field crop saying '"=Zven when landlorcds

were forced to accewt turnip cultivation by tenants they attempted {o reconcile it
with tne foldcourse system’ and he cites as an example the case of r Foxley where
a landlord agreed to accept 2/- per acre for shackage lost on land sown with
turnips. He goes on to say 'Sy such means the disruption of many foldcourses was
delayed until they were Ilnally remcved by the Parliamentary Znclosure Acts in the
second half of the 12th Century'.

In the light of the factual ard histaical evidence I have come to the conclusion

that a possible origin of the usage of the cullett flock to graze on the half year
lands of Runton was the cooperation between the owner of the foldecourse and the
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owners or tenants of the half year lands, A cullett right was the right to put
sheep into the lord's flock. Miss Cameron points out that in Runton there were
two flocks, the lord's flock and the cullett flock, and she therefore contends
that I must presume a grant for the cullett flock to graze. In my view a possible
explanation of the Runton cullett flock grazing under a separate shepherd is that
the Abbey flock grazed over both Beeston and Runton and it may well have been

both convenient and desirable that Runton sheep should graze in Runton and Beeston
sheep should graze in Beeston. This is no more than speculation on my part but I
see no reason to presume that the origin of so called cullett rights in Runton
differed from the origins of cullett rights elsewhere in Norfolk. Consistent

with this view is the sheepmaster's receipt of turnip money without any objection
or claim by the culletteers, the execution of releases by the sheepmaster and the
widely held view that the cullett flock could not graze until the Abbey flock had
been on., Then again if the so called cullett rights derived .from the sheepmaster
there is the further question as to why I should presume a grant to or for the
benefit of the inhabitants. @Hr Allison in his account of the sheep-corn busbandry
states throughout that it was a system operated by cooperation between flockowner
ard landowners and tenants and, in particular, that cullett rights were related

to the areas of land and the numbers of cullett sheep for each parcel of land

were fixed.

It is the fact that inhabitants of Runton with no land have grazed in the cullett
flock, the instructions to ir Partridge in 1793 clearly so state, but these instruc-
tions zlso state that the right to graze was annexed to land and that grazing by
inhabitants who did not own land was from indulgence,sufferance or neglect, This
statement in 1793 is consistent with ‘Ir Allison's history arnd, putting it at its
lowest, discloses a nossible alternative to a grant to or for ‘the benefit of the
irhabitants, The sugmestion by some that cullett rights were poor Ifolk's rignts
camt lppursued in the face of the Charity Commission's failure over fifteen years to
find ary charitable nurnose.

erred me to Igerton v Jarding 3YWLR 437 for the prorvosition that I
tc he a lenal historian see p. 443 I, She says the usasze of the.
¢ of inhnbitants to put sheen in that floclk is established and that
ofore vresume a lawful origin leaving the mists of time to obscure the
hiziorical origin., That is no cdoubt an accentable apnroach where the usage is
proved, simplicitor, in Sgerton v Harding an obligation to fence against the
common, buit in the instant case the »recise nature of the usage is in issue and
the duty immosed uuen me iz to ascertain whether a lost grant for the benefit of
irhabitants is the only reasonable inference,
s7 vriew one reascnzble inference is that the cullett rights in Junton were as
- e called rishts, no different from sinmilar rizhts

tat their origin lay in cooperation between flockouner
andowmers and “anants, and that insofar as inhabitants who were not landowners
5 -ut sheer or excessive numbers of sheep into the cullett flock, they did
tue of the indnlgence, sufferance or neglect of the landewners. !'iss Cameron

o
shere in lorfsolirn and
"

PR

2t ore stage rressed e to Sind what the lawful origin was, in my view I am under
no obligation so to do, a rezsonable alternative in ny view precludes a presumption

of a lost -rant. ovever if I %e uwrong and I have to find what the lawful origin
was I would find in favour of that stated above,

Ter sood reasure I must draw attention to the vossibility that the usage may not
wave been as of rig:t; the evidence in the Holt County Uourt suggests the
possibility of an element of vi',
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Finally I must deal briefly with the authorities. Miss Cameron cited four cases
of presumed Crown grants:

Willingale v Maitland 1866LR 3 Eg 103

Chilton v Corporation of London 1878 7 4 Div 735 )
Lord Rivers v Adams 1878 LR 3 Ex 361

Free Fishermen of Faversham A 1887 36 ch-Div 329

In each of these cases if there had been a grant it would of necessity have been

a grant by the Crown. Miss Cameron invoked Henry VIII as a possible grantor by
reason of his suppression of the Priory. In my view there is no ground for:

presuning any such grant; shorfly after the supvression he leased the Priory and
later sold it. The evidence referred to above indicated that Henry VIII's sole corcer
was to realise money and there is no evidence that he interfered in any way in the
admninistration.

The only case of a oresumed grant in favour of inhabitants is laigh v West 1893 2 Q3 1
a very different case from that uncer consideration. TFrom shortly after 1774 the
irhabitants in vestry aszembled had let the land and received the rents and profits.
There was a corporate activiiy and indeed the Court of Appeal while affirming the
judsment at first instance held that tlhe Farish had acguired a title by the Statute

of Limitations.

I was alco referred %o a decision of the Chiief Commons “ommissioner.,

In Re Z2lling Common, Ref 19/3/13, this again was a c¢ase of corporate activity by
the Tarish as was Joinson v ‘arnes ilerein referred to., In the instant case the
usage was by individ re was no corzorate activity until the Fulcher case.

I
I LX) L
[

“o autlority was cited to me in which a srant for the bhenefii of

had heen nresumed in thie zbsence of any cornorate activiiy on the nart of the
Farish, iiss Tameron accepted that if I rresumed a grant in the insiant case I
should ne hLrealidng Iresh ground, I am relieved to find that for the reasons given
above there is no rnecessity for me to take that hold course.

The Great Zeasts. [liss Cameron invites -ie to presume a grant for the grazing of

-
1

commonaole znimals other than sheep. This was not clained in the Julcher action
and the evidence on :this sudject both in the Sulcher action and at this hearing is
scanty. There has without deudbt been some zrazing but I am not satisfied that such
gracing was as of rignt. t must be remembered that graszing was available on the
wnole ryear commons, that until 1930 the gates on the half vear iznds were taken down.
ilo evidence was givern at the llearing of any assertion of a right to graze great
beasts on half year larnds from the time when the gates ceased to be taken down.

T:e owner of a stubble field open to tle -+khey floclk and in early days to the cullett
flceok would zave difficulty in nreventing other animals coming on te his lazd, even
if he was not prepared to tolerate them. Jome wonies did, prior to the 1939/45 war,
graze cn tie cliffs with exzress rermission. ' '

far short of that which would

The evidence as to grazing of the great b
e prepareé to break fresh ground,

o
compel me to rresume a lost grant, even if

[
[S )}

al
would !

o

I



Shack. Miss Cameron claims that Mr Oliver, the Norfolk Archaeological Trust, the
Parish Council and Sir Ivison Macadam's successors are entitled to rights of shack.
At the hearing a great deal of time was spent and a great deal of learning was
deployed on this topic.

In my view however there is a very short answer to this claim, namely that no
evidence was given to support it. Rights of shack are the rights of several owners
of land in an open field to go at large in that open field during the shack

period with their cattle or great beasts, see Sir Miles Corbet's case 7 Co Rep.5a
and Cheesman v Hardham 1 B 2 Ald 706. The only claimants for this right of shack
who gave evidence were Lady Macadam and the Parish Council. Neither of them gave
any evidence as to the areas over which they claimed to exercise rights of shack
nor indeed as to ever having exercised any such right.

Miss Cameron late in the day put forward the proposition that all the owners of
half year lands -had rights of shack inter se over all the half year lands, and that
the reconstituted cullett flock was an instance of a right of shack being exercised.

I should mention that Miss Cameron was in some difficulty owing to the evidence
having been taken in lorwich before any consideration of the relevant law.

In my view in order to establish a right of shack, the claimant must prove that the
land for which he clains that right is or was part of a defined open field and he
must claim for a defined number of animals in respect of his portion of the open field.

It seems to me improbable and I am certainly not orepared to assume that all the
half year knd was open field. Even if this was vossible the circumstance that

the half vear lands are interspersed with whole~“year commons-seems to me to negative
the possibility of one huge open field. Then again, each of the four applicants for
whom claims are put forward on the basis of shack have only claimed to graze sheebn.
The origin of a right of shaeck was to enable the owners or tenants ol strips to
graze the beasts they required to till those strips. There was at the hearing a
great deal of argument as to whether inclosure would or would nct terminate a right
of shack and Miss Cameron contended that in the absence of croof of a custom to
inclose, a right of snhack was nerpetual. The turnip fields were clearlvy inclesures
and it would be unrealistic to assume that 2/- ver acre was paid in respect of

these fields if owners of hzlf year lands could shack in the turnip lelds. ‘the
Sarish Council itself has made many inclosures for allotments and ore for a
recreation ground. FEad it been necessary I would hold that a custom to inclose

was estabvlished.

Tor the reasons given above I have come to the conclusion that there are no
subsisting rights of common over the half year lands and I refuse to confirm the
Entry in the Land Section of the register, and all the Sntries in the Rights Section.

T am conscious of the fact that I have not in this decision referred to a great deal of
the evidence given at the hearing. There was evidence as to the proceedings of the

- Zrpingham RDC and the Parish Council subsequent to 1900. Such evidence cannot in my
view assist me in the search for a legal origin prior to that date. It is the fact
that many of the activities of the Farish Council are inconsistent with its being

a trustee for the inhabitants, but the circumstance that thers have oeen breaches

of trust would not preclude me from presuming a grant to a trustee if the evidence
compelled me to take that course, Then again there was evidence as to the circum-
stances in which the rights came to be registered; these registrations were

organised without legal advice.
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The fact of the matter 'is that, bedevilled as they were by the Fulcher case (one
witness told me he was''brought up on Judge Willis"), it was only when faced with
the prospect of this hearing that those who seek to uphold rights imposed on
their legal advisers the task of formulating the necessary legal justification.
There was evidence of permanent structures having been built on half year lands
for the purpose of licensed caravan sites and of encroachments., I was told that
from. time to time what I referred to at the hearing as the "environmental lobby".

were in power in Runton and from time to time their opponents were in power, and

there clearly was selective tolerance of activities which would have been .
jnconsistent with the grazing rights if they were then subsisting. I am not
concerned with merits and I have deliberately refrained from any unnecessary
reference to the evidence in the hope that if my conclusions for the reasons

given above are correct the dissensions to which the half year rights have given
rise may like those rights ve history and that there may henceforth be peace and
goodwill among all men and women in Runton. In fairness to the Caravan Club of
Great Britain and Mr Joseph, I must mention that he called as witnesses Mr Chidson,
the Director General and Mr 3Brooks the manager of the sites department. The
Caravan Club contracted to buy its site on 14 April 1961 and no evidence given on
its behalf can in my view be relevant to my decision. The above mentioned witnesses
did however satisfy me that the Club was anxious to be cooperative and that it was
very conscious of its obligations to the community. It is indeed right that I
should say that while the vresence of caravans, which are licensed Zor the close
season, is resented dy some, no commlaint was made of the conduct o the Club or
its members. Evidence was also given that the exercise of the k.11 rvear rights
would te prejudicial to the farmers. However I doubt if there is any intention to
evercise the rights which will only be invoked, if I am wrong in the conclusicen

at wiich I have rarrived, to restrict building and caravans.

1

One Surt-er reason For eening this decision as brief as neszibl
pe U

in tle Cromer lcunty “au

i
urzency. -orere is z nending actio rT ocon
by the late 3ir Ivisox ilacadam and George Ticten Zeasr a gt the
in which the Caravan Clut has giver an undertaking not o iid red b i
or to carry cut any werks of a similar nature, and there a crecss underiaking
in darazes which having regord to inflation may well ne s tantinl an isin
day oy day. This action a5 awaited the decision to te 3 n on

in my view it is in the best interesis of the narties to
be distosed of with all convenient speed. It is a matter
Dariskh Jouncil is a trustee it was in my view a necessary

I turn =ow to the cases of “hose objectors who apveared by [r Zutcler and those
uiic appeared in person,

Davidé Thomas Abbs. iss Cameron felt able to concede his Chjecticn Jlo. 23565 on
the ground that it was an ancient inclosure,

D T ibtbhs and 3 R Abbs. Objection lo. 2072,

David Thomas Abbs gave evidence he was born in 1925 and moved to est Qunton 1
1027. Te was in the army from 1943 to 1947, went to agricultural college in 1 43
and came permanently to Laburnum ZTarm in 1545, e gave details of is father and
other members of his family farming at Laburnum Farm, which now conmprises 170 acres
of which 13 are leased. Host of the coast line and some other land is subject %o
restrictive covenants in favour of the National Trust. He started to help on the
farm while at school. He had never seen any sheep on the land, no one had ever
asked to graze and no one had ever asked for any money. lie had never seen any
animals on this land other than their own other than with permission since he
could remember. He and his family had no sheep but they had cows and followers,

o
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pigs and working horses. He did not remember any of the Laburnum animals grazing
any land other than their own. He did hear of a dairy herd in a very dry time
grazing the whole year commons. They had 60 dairy cows plus followers but gave
up the dairy herd in 1973 because of the ill health of the cowman. He had never
considered or. thought he was entitled to graze any land other than the whole year
commons. ' '

He then went on to describe two caravan parks, one Laburnum Park at the extreme
west and the other Wood Hill Park at the extreme east. These are licensed by

the RDC for the period 20 March to 30 October but if Easter is early the date the
20 March may be advanced. There are permanent structures on these parks for toilet
blocks, wash houses, shower facilities, an office and a telephone kiosk. The
roads used to be gravel but this washed away; they are now tarmac. ~.

There were no objections on account of the half year rights; there were grumbles
and one neighbour ohjected for fear the water pressure would be unduly reduced.

He further stated that if sheep were put on his land and gates taken off it would
have made farming as he knew it extremely difficult. Sheep would have made the
dairy herd impossible as it was TT and brusilosis tested and had to be isolated.
The soil is light and extrawinter grazing would have been at the exrense of summer
grazing. He had farmed as a tenant farmer at Cottage Farm. UNo aninmals other than
his grazed on that farm while he was there nor did he seek to graze any animals on
other half year land. He was never given any instructions to remove gates on half
year lands.

Cross—exanined he said there were always discussions that their land was haif year
land., Ke hnew tbe name but did not know iirs Reynolds. The tradition was one paid
for roots; hq;oayﬁe“ts were nade. Charles Abbs was 2 menber o? the Zast dunton
Abbs family. {15 grandfather was a tenant in 1929, Some of nis land, viz S 74,
75, 73-146, 158, 137 and 133 belongs to the ilorfolk irchaeolosical Trust; O35 110, 115
and nart of 120 belonzgs to rs V 3Brown. ie rotates ais crous and uses the land.
The two caravan sites are successful and show more nrofit than if the land was
used for farming. Je has no plans to extend the sites, so to do would detract
From their amenities and there are also the National Trust cevenanis. lir Savbage
got into trouble about his roads. The fields are wired with nosts and barted wire,
some have sates and on others the wire is turned back when necessary.

Re-examined he said there was no access to tie archaeological land save over lis
land.

mom bbss last payment of turmip money was in 1048,

Sidneyr Tharles Abbs zave evidence that he was aged 7C, born in Runton and lived
ere until he moved to Hall “arm wiich is one but next to Abbey Farm. He lived
at Laburnum Farm for four years while he was employed by trhe railuay during the
period 1922 to 1928, FKe spoke of his recollection of the 101h/1* war when army
horses were stabledat Isburmun Farm. He well rememvered the Abbey Iflock; it used to
vass along the main road to the half year lands; the last time he saw it doing
this was in 1916. The “lock was very much smaller than it had been, about 130,
half the usual number. The military traffic ceated problems. e knew Spuddy
Sherherd well; he didn't remember the Abbey flock after 1910 but he believed Spuddy,
was a cowman uhen he went to Hall Farm in 1931 and that he had been a labourer for
about four years prior to that. He saw a few donkeys and ponies on Laburnum Fara
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during the half yeaf béfiod. Jimmy Dykie had a few donkeys and about 2 acres.
People used it as a privilege. He thought they were there every day and stabled
at night. 'They were all usable animals. '

In cross examination he said that most of Laburnum Farm was half year land from
West Runton Gap to the Cromer boundary. He did not know of any rights over Hanor
Farm. The village people believed they had a right to a cullett flock., He
believed there were no sheep from West Runton in the East Runton Cullett flock.

He knew Jimmy Dykie was the shepherd but he did. not know him as the village
shepherd. He believed the Abbey flock ceased about 1920 but they may have kept

a few sheep after that; he would not doubt Mrs Reynolds's word. There were donkeys
and ponies till the 30's when the motor car took over. Laburnum Farm had seven
different landlords; there were about 8 small farms. There were always donkeys
and ponies. There had been a cullett flock, People were allowed to put donkeys and
ponies on. ' ,

The evidence of Tom Abbs.and Sidney Abbs is not conflicting. In 1931 when Sidney
Abbs moved to Hall Farm, Tom Abbs was aged 6,

I have dealt with the evidence of these two witnesses at some length, first because .
they carry the evidence given in the Fulcher case down to tie present day, and
secondly because it is the evidence of farmers who I would expect to be the nost
reliable witnesses as to grazing and in particular grazing on their own farms.

The picture these witnesses paint is that which I have indicated above, viz. The
Abbey flock grazing until 1929, though nrobably on a diminishing scale after the
1614/18 war. ‘Yorking donkeys and ponies grazed up to about 1930 when the motor

car disnlaced working animals, The cullett flock it is common ground had rnot grazed
between 1914 and 1953 when there was a purvorted reconstituted cullett flock.

o righits of grazing over Laburnum Farn have been exercised since 1922 and no clainm
for furnip money has been nade since 1948, Permanent structures for the caravan
sites were nut down 2s a result of the 1960 ict without any comnlzaint.

=

n ooy view if and only if the Parish Council, contrary to iy view eunressed zoove,
iz a tructee of rightz for the irhabitants, and if the trustee could not acandon
those rizhts, can any rights over Laburnum farm be still subsisting, )

s 1 materizl
times been a trustee of rights for the inhabitants it could not atandon these

t5: see Goulding J at ». 490 H in the case of Oakley v 'leston 1975 3 IR 478,
If, contrary to my view, the Parish Council is a trustee, then if Ii could zxllow ile
rizhts to be determined by default they are,in my view, no longer subsisting.

, to vut it no higher, arguable that if the Parish Council has at al
4
"

r Iplliday zave evidence thiat he has farmed lanor Farm since 195% in succession to
135 fatser-in-law, M 3yworth, He came tlhere in 19585, iz Srworth Zied ivo years
250. 12 :nd never seen any sheep grazing on llator Farmy he didn't thinit the

gquesticrn arcse until there was a controversy about the District Couneil wifhin

to put ouses on the Lugger Tile allotments. His wife was born at llanor Farm and

as far as he could discover sheep had never grazed on Manor Farm. e lmew lr 3yworis
naid turnip meney and on one occasion refused to pay. He had never srazed half

vear 1znd and never thought e had the risht so to do. The area Ifrom Iloundadout Hi11
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to the railway is one field and it would be a nonsense if part of it were held to
be half year land. If this is held to be the case he would be wondering if he
would still be there in 1977 (IIr Byworth's last payment of turnip money was in 1542).

In cross-—examination he said Mr Byworth always had roots and kept a dairy herd. He hac
applied for permission fer a caravan site but was refused and lost an appeal. He
accepted that decision and had now no plans’ = for a caravan site.

My cornclusion as regards lianor Farm is the same as that stated above as regards
Laburnum Farm.

'r Bullinore zave evidence, His father owns 03 196197 and 138, which is uzed as
a caravan site. This land was released by Frs Reynolds by a 1925 Deed of Release.
It is nov used as a caravan site with permanent structures and a tarmac road and

completely fenced in,

This land could only be sutject to common rights so far as rightsare held by a
trustcee incarable of sbandoning those rights.

3 J Jorritt gave evidence and said his father was in Spain. He had known the site
since the snring of 1005, It was used as Zirdland. There were a toilet block,
zn aviary and a tropical bird house, 21l zermanent structures, which had been planned

by their nredecessor in title, G HMumphrey, and they did a bit extra. There were
objectisns on account of half wrear rights, but they continued to 1359 when his father
reluciantly zave uv. The father's house was registered as hall year land. This

was toe —ast straw. Sone of ‘the land has beern sold off but ke still owns C3 202 and
leme of the o1& aviaries are still there. lie has permisien for a mobtile home
There oo been no ovnosition to this. I lie could he would nut
and e wants to use the romainder of the lond as a nariket

1 ferged in with o 5 Tt fou-preoof fence. CI 239 hns four

zarden sheds and two large corrugated iron sheds. It is fenced
iz z ledre on the fourth side.

- 1A L i-
SEeNTLT Lani,.

2445 lond iz I teliasve the subject of a release to llr Tickerinz, but in oy
i3 only a trustee wno may have aby subsisting rights, and, as I have said befor

i

T Tnve come to the coclusion thiat there is no such trustee.

ar

ir Tzcon zlso gave evidence. lMr Tacon, whose firm had
those for wnom iir Butcher arzeared, did ne more ths

i cbiectors not represented at the hearing, In the course
o o old tiat Ir % Ilrs Pinch owned land the sutject of a release
and tieir nosition is the szme as that of others similarly situated,

Tr o Tuller said e thousht his 1and was wronply registered and that I'r Sainty had agreec
Mie Tarish Council was understandably reluctant to make any admissions wrior to

L . -
the learing.

iy

Titgnam mave evidence that lie keews pigs on his land and cultivates it, in

izl
tarticuiar to grow vegetables for his aped parents.
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Mr Jonas bought his land from Mr Fulcher in 1954 zpd it is fenced and had always
been fenced, The Highway Authority took away some of his land and he did a deal
with them and they put up a new fence and gates in 1954 to 1956.

Mr Crisv in his evidence illustrated tremischief that the belief in the continued
existence of these unused rights has created. He said his land has good grazing but
no one has ever wished to graze it. Ultimately he put his daughter's ponies there
and wired it, but someone came and cut the wire. )

Tnis illustration lends force to Mr Butcher's submission to me when he opened his
case by citing an extract from the speech of Lord Atkin in UnitdAustralia Ltd v
Barclay's Bank 1941 AC 1 at p. 29 - viz:

""here these ghosts of the past stand in the vath of

justice clanking their mediaeval chains the proper course

for the judge is to pass through them undeterred’,
These words were spoken in a very different context. I do not lose sight of th
fact that justice is not my concern and that my only concern is to ascertain what
rights are still subsisting., I am however relieved to find that, if I correctly
understand %l:e relevant law, I am not compelled to find rights vested in the rarish
Council as a trustee wnen it izs never acted as such or claimed to be a trustee
until this hearing. The Parish Council, as appears from its minutes, has bveen active
to nrevent use of the half rear land for vurzoses of which it does not avprove but
the evidence clearly shows tiat it has deen selective and las not teen impartial.

To sum uz, ny conclusions are as follows:-

1 Macin,  There ic no eviderce to suwnport this cidm.  Shack righis which may weil
cvisztad at one time were vested in individunls nnd were inm ny view
atnndcned long ver 25
2 The abbev Slock. These undoubted rights ave not been registersd and are no
len~er euercisazle, Tier were in oy soandoned at the iatest in 1982 wien
. . Y . . . . . !,
made er will, she not laving received any turnip money since 1854,
for my nart take the viow thai fhiey were abandoned very much eariier,

I The Oullett Tloci, It i3 woasitle and in my view prohatle thal the cullett rightz
17 ey could properly ve descriled as rights, were vested in igndowrners and
dewendent upon the .ibbey rights, In *liese circunstances there is no room for a
sresunption of a srant fo a trustee.

4 uch srazing as there was was intermittent and exvlicable as

le to tolerance,.

T yas inviied by ir Sawbridze and Ty Lr Tunteher to make orders for costs., The

Sardish Council in view of Lhe decisisn in the fulcher case had no zlternative out

to rezizter <ke land as ccmmon land and a learing was ineviiadble.

ut this was in large measure
were not defined

-

attritutzble to the assence of any nrocedural rules. The issues
irn anr way until the opening of the hearing. : great deal of time was supent on
the investimation of irrelevant matters and only 'ir Sutcher, who was not present

throushout tie hearing and wio relied on Uir Soseph to argue the broad principles of
the case, was bluameless in this regard.



The necessity to test the validity of the decision in the Fulcher case did not
justify Miss Cameron's submissions based on the Abbey rights and shack, on which
she failed, Save for some small amount of historical evidence put in by Mr Joseph,
the evidence was complete when the hearing was resumed in London and three days
argument on the claim on behalf of the inhabitants should, in my view, have been
ample to deal with that point. I regard this as a generous estimate because at a
very early stage I drew Miss Cameron's attention to the Kingston Brewery case and
the difficulty she faced in persuading me that the lost grant for which she was
contending was the only reasonable inference, _

For this reason I shall order the Parish Council, the successor to Sir Ivison Macadan,
the Norfolk Archaeological Trust and Mr Oliver to pay the costs of the Caravan Club
of Great Britain modified so as to be limited to the hearing in London subsequent

to the 14th January 1976. Mr Butcher only attended on one day in London and his
attendance was necessary and I feel unable to award him any costs.

I am required by regulation 30(1l) of the Commons Commissioners Regulations 1971

to explain that a person aggrieved by this decision as being erronsous in point

of law may, within 6 weeks from the date on which notice of the decision is sent
to him, require me to state a case for the decision of the High Court.

il
Dated this ? day of Tarehe 1976

C A fHe

Commons Commissioner
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